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Addendum No. 3 
 

RFQ No. 23-36 
BUILDING COMMISSIONING SERVICES –  

ROCKDALE COUNTY JUDICIAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
 

April 5, 2024 
 

RFQ #23-36 is hereby amended as follows:   
 

1. Below are questions received and corresponding answers: 
 
A. Question: Please confirm the Fee Proposal Form will be completed at the end of the evaluation process and 

not required for inclusion of RFQ response as per the instructions in Section 7. 
 

Answer: That is correct.  
Fee Proposal:  
A Fee Proposal Form will be provided during the end of the evaluation process to the top ranked firm. The Fee 
proposal shall be submitted in a sealed opaque envelope and shall not include any project SOQ information. Only 
the top-rated firm will receive a Fee Proposal form. Please understand that this proposal constitutes a starting 
point for negotiation toward an eventual agreement on fees.   
 

B. Question: For section A, parts A8, A9, A10, can you please confirm that forms are not part of the page 
count? 

 
Answer: Attachments and cover sheets do not count towards the page limits. 
 

C. Question: Could Section A be extended to 3 pages so that we can address each of the requirements?  
 

Answer: The revised page limit for this RFQ is now 25 pages minus attachments and cover 
sheets.  

• Section A (4-pages) 
• Section B (15-pages) 
• Section C (3-pages) 
• Section D (3-pages) 
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D. Question: For Section B, could the page limit be extended to 15 pages to allow for full page resumes?  

 
Answer: The revised page limit for this RFQ is now 25 pages minus attachments and cover 

sheets.  
• Section A (4-pages) 
• Section B (15-pages) 
• Section C (3-pages) 
• Section D (3-pages) 

 
E. Question: For Section D, could this page limit be extended to 3 pages to allow for responses to each 

requested item? 
 

Answer: The revised page limit for this RFQ is now 25 pages minus attachments and cover 
sheets.  

• Section A (4-pages) 
• Section B (15-pages) 
• Section C (3-pages) 
• Section D (3-pages) 

 
F. Question: How many hard copies are required?  Page 2 of the Fact Sheet section and page 8 under 

Instructions for Preparing Statements of Qualifications say that one hard copy is required, but the Proposer's 
Checklist on page 25 says that two hard copies (1 original and 1 photocopy are required). Which is correct? 

 
Answer: 1 Hard copy and 1 electronic PDF on a USB drive 
 

G. Question: Quals Section A8 on page 7 says to "complete the Certification Form (Exhibit A enclosed with 
RFQ). However, the Exhibit A included in the RFQ is the Addenda Acknowledgement Form, not the 
Certification Form. Which form do we need to submit? 

 
Answer: Exhibit C has the Certification Form, please complete, and submit with the 
qualifications. 
 

H. Question: Quals Section A9 on page 7 says to "complete and submit a "CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT... 
(Exhibit B). However, Exhibit B in the RFQ is the Affidavit Verifying Status for County Public Benefit 
Application and Exhibit D is the Contractor Affidavit. 

 
Answer: Exhibit D is the Contractor Affidavit, please complete, and submit with the 
qualifications. 
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I. Question: Quals Section A10 on page 7 says to "complete and submit the Disclosure Statement (Exhibit 

C), However, Exhibit C in in the RFQ is the Certification of Absence of Conflict of Interest for 
Development of Specifications or Scope of Work. 

 
Answer: Please void question A10 on page 7. 
 

J. Question: On Page 20 of the RFQ, there is a Rockdale County Board of Commissioners Non-Collusion 
Affidavit of Vendor.  This form is mentioned by general reference on the Proposer's Checklist but is not 
referenced on Page 8 of the RFQ as a required form for submission to the County. Does this form need to 
be filled out and submitted with the RFQ? 

 
Answer: The Rockdale County Board of Commissioners Non-Collusion Affidavit of Vendors 
form should be completed and submitted with the qualifications. 
 

K. Question: On Pages 22-23 of the RFQ, there is a form to include reference information. This form is 
mentioned on the Proposer's Checklist, but it is not referenced on Page 8 of the RFQ as a required form for 
submission to the County. Does this form need to be filled out and submitted with the RFQ? 

 
Answer: The Reference Form on pages 22 & 23 should be completed and submitted with the 
qualifications. 
 

L. Question: On Page 24 of the RFQ, there is a form entitled Subcontractors. This form is mentioned on the 
Proposer's Checklist, but it is not referenced as a required form for submission to the County. Does this 
form need to be filled out and submitted with the RFQ? 

 
Answer: Please void the “Subcontractor form” on page 24. 
 

M. Question: On Page 25, the Proposer's Checklist references a "Proposal Information Sheet." Those pages 
correspond to the Fee Proposal Information Sheet. On page 9 of the RFQ, the subsection Fee Proposal says 
that a Fee Proposal form will be provided to the top ranked firm at the end of the evaluation process. Do we 
need to submit fees with our response? 

 
Answer: No, fees are not to be submitted until requested.  
Fee Proposal:  
A Fee Proposal Form will be provided during the end of the evaluation process to the top ranked firm. The Fee 
proposal shall be submitted in a sealed opaque envelope and shall not include any project SOQ information. Only 
the top-rated firm will receive a Fee Proposal form. Please understand that this proposal constitutes a starting 
point for negotiation toward an eventual agreement on fees.   
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N. Question: For Section B, we have ten projects we would like to include in our qualifications, but it will be 

difficult to include them, and our project team resumes within the ten-page limit. Can the page limit on this 
section be expanded? 
 

Answer: The revised page limit for this RFQ is now 25 pages minus attachments and cover 
sheets.  

• Section A (4-pages) 
• Section B (15-pages) 
• Section C (3-pages) 
• Section D (3-pages) 

 
O. Question: Will the specific contract be provided for review and comment prior to the submission date? 

 
Answer: See attached for Sample AIA contracts C103 – 2015 & C203 - 2017 
 

P. Question: Regarding section E2 – Is the County looking for the corporate license here or individual 
employee licenses? 

 
Answer: The County is requesting corporate licenses and individual licenses for those who are 

being proposed for the project.   
 

Q. Question: Please confirm whether a Fee Proposal is required to be submitted with the initial Qualifications 
document. The Fee Proposal sheet has been provided in Exhibit E and is listed in the required format of the 
Qualifications response, section F1 (on page 8). However, instructions on page 9 (Fee Proposal header) and 
page 10 (Responsibility of Proposer header) indicate that fee proposals will be submitted in a sealed 
envelope only by shortlisted firms. 

 
Answer: That is correct. The Fee Proposal Form will be sent to the top-rated firm as stated on 
page 9 of the RFQ. 
Fee Proposal:  
A Fee Proposal Form will be provided during the end of the evaluation process to the top ranked firm. The Fee 
proposal shall be submitted in a sealed opaque envelope and shall not include any project SOQ information. Only 
the top-rated firm will receive a Fee Proposal form. Please understand that this proposal constitutes a starting 
point for negotiation toward an eventual agreement on fees.   
 

R. Question: Please disregard this question if a Fee Proposal is not required as part of the initial Qualifications 
document. Otherwise, confirm the number of Cx Design Reviews that should be included in the Fee 
Proposal. 

 
Answer: Disregarded due to Fee Proposal not being required at this stage in the process. 
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S. Question: Please disregard this question if a Fee Proposal is not required as part of the initial Qualifications 

document. Otherwise, confirm whether conducting envelope tests (as opposed to only observing tests) 
should be included in the Fee Proposal. 

 
Answer: Disregarded due to Fee Proposal not being required at this stage in the process. 
 

T. Question: Please confirm the forms required with the submittal. Due to page limitations, can sections A-8 - 
A10 be included in Section E? 

 
Answer: Attachments and cover sheets do not count towards the page limits. The revised page 

limit for this RFQ is now 25 pages minus attachments and cover sheets.  
• Section A (4-pages) 
• Section B (15-pages) 
• Section C (3-pages) 
• Section D (3-pages) 

 
U. Question: Who is the CM/GC for this project? 

 
Answer: The Construction Manager At-Risk is McCarthy Barnsley (A Joint Venture). 
 

V. Question: Who is the architect/design firm for this project? 
 

Answer:  
• Architect of Record – Jericho Design Group, LLC  
• Architect - Nelson 
• Structural Engineer – Shear Engineering  
• Mechanical Engineer – Hammond Engineering, Inc 
• Electrical Engineer – Hammond Engineering, Inc 
• Plumbing Engineer – Hammond Engineering, Inc 
• Civil Engineer – ASCE  
• Landscape Engineer – PLA Design Studio  

 
W. Question: Per 3.1.4 SYSTEMS TO COMMISSION: At this point, the Project is still in the programming 

phase so the systems to be commissioned have not yet been fully identified. 
How can we submit a competitive fee proposal if we do not know which systems are being commissioned? 

 
Answer: The County will select the most responsive and responsible commissioning firm based on 
qualifications (RFQ). Once a firm is selected, the county will provide a Fee Proposal Form to the 
top ranked firm; the Fee Proposal Form will identify equipment. 
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X. Question: Per 3.1.5 OWNER’S DOCUMENTATION: The actual scope of services could vary from the 

tasks listed above and communicated to eligible firm(s) prior to actual agreement. 
How are we meant to price this if we don’t know what the scope of services is? 

 
Answer: The RFQ is focusing on qualifications, A Fee Proposal Form will be provided during the 

end of the evaluation process to the top ranked firm. 
 

Y. Question: Is the pricing form supposed to be submitted with our qualifications? 
 

Answer: No 
 

Z. Question: Regarding the total page count: By using both the front and back side on one piece of paper, 
does this count as one or two pages towards the total page count of 16? 

 
Answer: Using both the front and back side of one piece of paper will count as 2 pages. However, 

the County is revising the page count to 25 pages.  
• Section A (4-pages) 
• Section B (15-pages) 
• Section C (3-pages) 
• Section D (3-pages) 

 
AA. Question: Is this project pursuing GA Peach, LEED Certification, or other sustainable goals? If so, has 

a scorecard been developed? Can it be distributed to proposers to help calculate accurate fees? 
 

Answer: The project will include sustainability features; however, the County is not aiming for a 
LEED Certification or GA Peach.   

 
BB. Question: Are there any design drawings available for a Commissioning takeoff other than the Task 

Force Master Plan provided? The information included in the drawings will be very valuable in determining 
how many pieces of equipment and systems need to be commissioned in order to calculate accurate fees. 

 
Answer: The Schematic Design documents are attached for review. 
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CC. Question: Who is the design firm under contract for the Architectural and MEP Engineering design for 

the project? 
 

Answer:  
• Architect of Record – Jericho Design Group, LLC  
• Architect - Nelson 
• Structural Engineer – Shear Engineering  
• Mechanical Engineer – Hammond Engineering, Inc 
• Electrical Engineer – Hammond Engineering, Inc 
• Plumbing Engineer – Hammond Engineering, Inc 
• Civil Engineer – ASCE  
• Landscape Engineer – PLA Design Studio  

 
DD. Question: Will the project be issued as a hard bid with completed design documents, or will the County 

solicit and select a Construction Manager prior to completion of the design documents? 
 

Answer: The project has a Construction Manager At-Risk under contract (McCarthy Barnsley), 
The Construction Manager At-Risk will hold bids for each construction division.  

 
EE. Question: Exhibit E Fee Proposal does not appear to be required for the proposal submission, please 

confirm. 
 

Answer: That is correct, not required with the proposal submission. 
 

FF. Question: What is the last day any Addendum will be issued on the website? 
 

Answer: Our deadline to post all Addenda is Monday, April 8, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. 
 

2. All other conditions remain in full force and effect.  
 

3. If a proposal has been submitted and anything in this Addendum causes the contractor to change the 
item offered or to increase or decrease the proposal price, the new price and/or changes will be 
inserted below: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4. All contractors under this Request for Qualifications are kindly requested to acknowledge receipt of this 
Addendum on the Proposal Form, page 14 of this RFQ.    

Tina Malone      
Tina Malone, CPPB CPPO 
Purchasing & Procurement Manager  
Department of Finance, Purchasing Division 
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